ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 1, 2005
1:33 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Charlie Huggins, Chair
Senat or John Cowdery, Vice Chair
Senat or CGene Therri aul t

Senat or Al bert Kookesh

Senator Hollis French

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 40
"An Act relating to the establishment of the Kuskokw m Port
Aut hority; and providing for an effective date.™

HEARD AND HELD

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 115( TRA)

"An Act relating to charges paid or collected by users or
occupants of an airport facility owned or controlled by the
state; and providing for an effective date."

MOVED SCS CSHB 115(TRA) QUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE BI LL NO 92
"An Act relating to charges paid or collected by wusers or
occupants of an airport facility owned or controlled by the
state.”

SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 42
"An Act nam ng the Joe WIllians, Sr., Coastal Trail."

SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 40

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -1- March 1, 2005



SHORT TI TLE: KUSKCOKW M PORT AUTHORI TY

SPONSOR( s) :

01/ 11/ 05
01/ 11/ 05
01/ 11/ 05
02/ 03/ 05
02/ 03/ 05
02/ 08/ 05
02/ 08/ 05
02/ 08/ 05
02/ 15/ 05
02/ 15/ 05
02/ 17/ 05
02/ 17/ 05
02/ 17/ 05
03/ 01/ 05

BILL: HB 115

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(H
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

SENATOR(s) COWADERY, HOFFMAN

PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 07/ 05

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
TRA, FIN

TRA AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

<Bi || Hearing Postponed to 02/08/05>
TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TCOL 17

Heard & Held

M NUTE ( TRA)

TRA AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Schedul ed But Not Heard

TRA AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Held

M NUTE ( TRA)

TRA AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

SHORT TI TLE: Al RPORT CUSTOMER FACI LI TY CHARCES

SPONSOR( s) :

01/ 26/ 05
01/ 26/ 05
02/ 08/ 05
02/ 08/ 05
02/ 08/ 05
02/ 09/ 05
02/ 09/ 05
02/ 09/ 05
02/ 14/ 05
02/ 14/ 05
02/ 14/ 05
02/ 16/ 05
02/ 16/ 05

02/ 16/ 05
02/ 24/ 05
02/ 24/ 05
02/ 24/ 05
02/ 24/ 05
02/ 28/ 05
02/ 28/ 05
03/ 01/ 05

NN AN AN AN AN NN NN NN

LTI TIIITITIIIZIIZIIZE

NN AN AN AN AN NN

W TNESS REG STER

SENATE TRA COW TTEE

LABOR & COMVERCE

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

TRA, FIN

TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

Moved CSHB 115(TRA) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE ( TRA)

TRA RPT CS (TRA) NT 4DP 1NR

DP: THOVAS, NEUMAN, GATTO, ELKINS;
NR:  SALMON

FIN AT 1: 30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
Moved CSHB 115(TRA) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE (FIN)

FIN RPT CS (TRA) NT 7DP 3NR

DP: HAVKER, CROFT, KELLY, FOSTER,
VWEYHRAUCH, MEYER, CHENAULT;

NR: STOLTZE, JOULE, HOLM

TRANSM TTED TO (S)

VERSI ON: CSHB 115( TRA)

TRA AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

<Pendi ng Referral >

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

TRA, FIN

TRA AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

- 2- March 1, 2005



M. Paul Fuhs, Lobbyi st

Kuskokwi m Cor por ati on

1635 Sitka St. STE 301

Anchor age, AK 99501

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comented on SB 40

Ms. Kat hl een Hof f man

Kuskokwi m Cor por ati on

1635 Sitka St. STE 301

Anchor age, AK 99501

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comented on SB 40

Ms. Anna Hof f man, Chief Qperating Oficer

Bet hel Native Corporation

Box 719

Bet hel , Al aska 99559

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 40

M. Dario Notti
Geor get own, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 40

M. Eric M ddl ebrook
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SB 40

M. Josh Appl ebee, Legislative A de
Staff to Representative Tom Anderson
Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 115

M. Mark Pfeffer, Business owner
Vent ure Devel opnent G oup
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on HB 115

M. Kip Knudson

Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities
3132 Channel Dr.

Juneau, AK 99801-7898

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on HB 115

M. John Steiner

Attorney Ceneral’s office

Depart ment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on HB 115

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 3- March 1, 2005



Ms. Sheryl Sutton, Legislative A de
Staff to Senator Ben Stevens

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on HB 115

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR CHARLIE HUGE NS called the Senate Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:33:31 PM Present were Senators
Hollis French, Gene Therriault, John Cowdery and Chair Charlie
Huggi ns. Chair Huggins advised the conmttee the first hour of
the neeting would be reserved for hearing testinony on SB 40.

SB  40- KUSKOKW M PORT AUTHORI TY

1:34.29 PM
CHARLI E HUGGE NS announced SB 40 to be up for consideration.

M5. KATHLEEN HOFFMAN, board of directors, Kuskokw m Corporation,
testified the Corporation is in support of developnent of the
Donlin Creek Mne. Their nunber one goal is to see that their
sharehol ders get jobs and benefit from the mne. Although they
have made it clear that they are ready to neet the initiators of
SB 40, the sponsors have yet to neet with them

She expressed concern regarding the nake up of the proposed port
authority board. The Kuskokwim Corporation would prefer
devel opment of a borough with elected representation of the
regi on. Kuskokwi m Corporation wll hold a borough formation
summt in the spring of 2005. Testinony from the Departnent of
Commerce and Community Devel opnent indicates preference for
borough formation also. According to the Departnent of
Transportation & Public Facilities (DOIPF), Placer Done intends
to develop the port and the road privately.

1:37: 04 PM

M5. HOFFMAN added the Al aska Industrial Developnment and Export
Aut hority (AIDEA) has advised they could provide financing for
the mne as they did with the Red Dog Mne if requested. Wile
Kuskokwi m does not support SB 40 at this tinme, they would Iike
to suggest anendnents. First would be an anmendnent which would
prohibit the authority from receiving land which has been
condemmed by the State of Alaska. Secondly, if the |egislation
noves forward it should include an anendnent, which would turn

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -4- March 1, 2005



over operations of the authority to an organized borough in the
area when it is forned.

1: 38: 46 PM
SENATOR JOHN COWDERY commented board nenbers would be the
Governor’s choi ce.

1:39: 09 PM
Senat or Al bert Kookesh joined the commttee.

SENATOR CONDERY noted Pl acer Done is neutral on SB 40.

CHAIR HUGA NS asked Ms. Hoffrman to explain her coment regarding
condemed | ands.

MR.  PAUL FUHS, Kuskokwi m Corporation, answered the question.
Condemmed land is when the State of Alaska cones in to build a
road and seizes the land by immnent domain. Currently the
authority does not have the power of inmmnent domain but they
could ask the state to do it for them and then transfer the
| and.

SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT stated borough formation would run up
agai nst the sane probl em

MR FUHS agreed but it would be a locally elected body
representative of the people fromthe area.

1:41:.21 PM
CHAIR HUGGA NS asked Ms. Hoffrman her interpretation of a tineline
for formation of the borough.

M5. HOFFMAN said it would be simlar to that of the Red Dog
M ne. The Kuskokwi m Board is concerned that the borough and the
m ne cone together at the sane time for the best interest of the
shar ehol ders.

MR. FUHS added around the state nearby boroughs are reaching out
to grab mning properties. That is an added concern worthy of
| ocal borough formation.

CHAIR HUGGA NS said the intent of the conmttee is to nake SB 40
happen. He chal l enged everyone to work together to capitalize on
t he val ue of the region.

1: 44: 32 PM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 5- March 1, 2005



SENATOR THERRI AULT referred to a letter sent by Kuskokw m
Corporation last year indicating support of an interior rivers
port authority. He asked M. Fuhs the difference.

MR. FUHS advised SB 40 legislation is nore expansive in terns of
the area. There is also the added concern over the nake up of
the board. Mich of the concern could be facilitated if the
initiators of the bill wuld sit down and neet wth the
comunity.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked whether last years bill covered Donlin
Cr eek.

MR. FUHS said yes but Placer Done did not have devel opnent pl ans
in place and they determned they do not want to use public
financing for the project because of the effect it would have on
their EIS. The DOTPF conpletely pulled out of the project
because Placer Done told them they wanted to do it all as one
EIS as a private devel opnent. They also said the cost of the
port and the road are not cost prohibitive to developing the
mne and that they would even pre-position equipnment there in
advance of the EIS being granted. The speed of doing it meant
nore to them than the two or three percent points of tax exenpt
fi nanci ng.

1:48: 06 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked whether the state providing conduit
financing triggers the heightened EIS.

MR. FUHS said yes and it also triggers the Davis-Bacon wages and
the issue of doing the entire project under one EIS — the mne
and the road and the port.

SENATOR THERRI AULT voi ced uncertainty that the Legislature could
trust the community to nove on formation of a borough.

MR. FUHS agreed and said that is why the community is holding
the summt. He asked the commttee to consider the proposed
anmendnent s.

1:50: 41 PM
CHAIR HUGA NS prom sed a nmenber of the conmttee would neet with
the community in the sunmer.

M5. HOFFMAN agreed they would be prepared. She advised the

comunity has tried many times to communicate with the bill
sponsor.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 6- March 1, 2005



1:53: 32 PM

M5. BEVERLY HOFFMAN, sharehol der, Calista Corporation and owner
of Kuskokwi m W/ derness Adventures, introduced herself. She
expressed concern regarding the power that SB 40 would give to
the port authority wthout Iocal consideration. She added
concern for the environnental inpact on the fish and wldlife.

1:56: 53 PM

M5. HOFFMAN added she was offended by a coment by Senator
Cowdery |last week regarding how community nenbers in the area
don’t speak English and live in their own world.

2:01: 35 PM

M5. ANNA HOFFMAN, chief operating officer, Bet hel Native
Corporation (BNC), expressed concern over SB 40. BNC prefers the
bill have |anguage that recognizes current private |and
ownership wthin the proposed operating area. BNC opposes
| anguage regarding the make up of the board and would require
board nenbers include those in the community. BNC does not
support the proposed operating area as presented. BNC opposes
the collection of rates, fees, rents and other charges for the
execution of duties since the proposed duties are not limted to
port related functions. The villages are under budgeted and
woul d not have the neans to pay charges inposed by SB 40.

2:04: 30 PM
SENATOR COWNDERY asked Ms. Hoffrman whet her the BNC was supportive
of devel opnent of the Donlin Creek M ne.

M5. HOFFMAN said they have environnmental concerns regarding
devel opnent .

CHAIR HUGE NS asked whether the BNC supports a borough
formation.

M5. HOFFMAN advi sed they oppose it at this tine.
CHAI R HUGGE NS asked whet her they support a port authority.

M5. HOFFMAN said they would like to research other options, such
as the enterprise and advi sory boards in Val dez.

SENATOR HOLLI S FRENCH asked Ms. Hof f man whet her t he BNC woul d be

nore supportive if they knew neetings would take place wthin
the community.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -7- March 1, 2005



M5. HOFFMAN sai d yes.

SENATOR FRENCH asked Senator Cowdery whether he could support
t hat .

SENATOR CONDERY agreed with Chair Huggins that woul d be a goal

SENATOR FRENCH offered to draft an anendnent to add that
| anguage.

2:07: 27 PM
CHAIR HUGEA NS invited Ms. Hoffman to take part in a planning
group to carry the initiative forward.

M5. HOFFMAN advised they would participate in any neetings,
information gathering, and research. She would not commt to
hel ping nmove the bill forward. She noted the effective date of
SB 40 was July 1, 2005 and asked when the commttee would neet
with the community.

2:09:48 PM

CHAI R HUGGE NS advi sed her to disregard the effective date.
2:11:12 PM

VR. ERIC M DDLEBROCK, | ocal resi dent, testified SB 40
| egi sl ation was going too fast. Area residents have not had tine
to digest the bill and the magnitude of it. The bill has the

potential to keep comrunity representation out and invites
outsiders to developnent the area. Oher authorities in the
state have clear |imtations of their power but SB 40 does not
address that. Immnent domain is a mmajor concern. He feels the
m ne should be solely responsible for its owm waste. He does not
agree with borough formati on because they have the power to |evy
taxes that could be funneled to support the operation of the
m ne. The proposed area the port authority would cover appears
to be unchecked devel opnent as a way to funnel public nonies to
private enterprises.

2:15: 03 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS challenged M. M ddl ebrook to work toward
sol uti ons.

MR. M DDLEBROOK said a borough costs too nmuch noney and SB 40
woul d railroad the community |leaving themstuck with liability.

2:18: 53 PM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 8- March 1, 2005



MR. DARIO NOITlI, Calista shareholder, Kuskokwi m Corporation
menber and Georgetown nenber, asked questions on the bill. He
wanted to know who would be responsible for the waste disposal
and expressed concerns regarding toxic waste. Both Calista and
Pl acer Done have a history of |eaving others responsible wth
| arge debt. He expressed concern over the board nenbers of the
proposed port authority.

2:27:31 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked M. Notti whether he saw no benefit
froma regional waste disposal or regional power generation.

MR. NOITI admitted there was potential for a benefit but the
bill does not clarify who woul d be responsible for those things.

2:31: 22 PM
CHAIR HUGA NS held SB 40 in conmmttee.

2:34:37 PM < Recess > 2:42:15 PM

HB 115- Al RPORT CUSTOVER FACI LI TY CHARGES

2:42: 15 PM
CHAI R HUGE NS announced HB 115 to be up for consideration. The
commttee woul d consider Version \I.

MR. JOSH APPLEBEE, staff to Representative Tom Anderson, advised
the conmittee substitute for HB 115 is the sane as SB 92, which
has al ready been through a full hearing in the Senate.

SENATOR CONDERY asked whether there were any differences in the
two bills.

M5. SHERYL SUTTON, staff to Senator Ben Stevens, testified there
is no difference between the bills.

2:45: 01 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked Ms. Sutton for clarification of changes
to Section 1.

M5. SUTTON stated there were no substantive changes other than
wor d housekeeping and an effective date.

SENATOR THERRI AULT noted “uniform custoner facility charge” was

controversial wording initially but is now being deleted. He
asked whether it was noved to a different section.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 9- March 1, 2005



M5. SUTTON said yes. The custoner facility charge was already in
place in statute and there is a new charge added, which is a
mai nt enance char ge.

2.46: 46 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked whether it was specifically for a car
rental space.

M5. SUTTON advised it deals with the car rental facility and the
mai nt enance aspects w thin.

2:48: 56 PM

MR. APPLEBEE sunmarized in 2001 the Legislature passed Chapter
99 SLE 2001 authorizing the use of the custoner facility charges
to fund inprovenents to airport facilities state owned I and.
Language needed to be tightened up for security of bonding.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked M. Applebee whether a person could
avoi d the charge by going off site.

VMR. APPLEBEE sai d yes.

2:51: 44 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked the reason for taking state action to
rai se the revenue to pay for the bond.

MR. APPLEBEE said when selling bonds for construction there
needs to be security.

MR. MARK PFEFFER, Venture Devel opnent G oup, said the conpanies
are prohibited fromsetting charges to do a project of this type
on their own because of anti trust |aws.

MR.  KIP KNUDSON, Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities (DOTPF), infornmed there have been a great deal of
investnment in |legal counsel and econom c analysis and the DOTPF
is in support of the bill

MR. JOHN STEINER, attorney general’s office, clarified HB 115 is
not limted the rental car parking facility.

2.:57:45 PM
CHAIR HUGEA NS reiterated there is a process for new rental car
conpani es to becone part of the vendor process.

2:59: 28 PM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -10- March 1, 2005



SENATOR COWDERY nmoved SCS CSHB 115(TRA) from conmittee wth
i ndi vidual recomrendations and attached fiscal note(s). There
being no objection, the notion carried. There being no further
business to cone before the commttee, Chair Huggins adjourned
the neeting at 3:00: 28 PM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -11- March 1, 2005



